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REGARDING: IDL ITB 1200 – MUSTANG FIRE DRONE STOCKING SURVEY - ADDENDUM 1
 
This ADDENDUM 1 is sent to provide a clarification and answers to questions received for the original solicitation released on January 27, 2026.

1. CLARIFICATION: Limited access to remote units will necessitate contractor use of Unmanned Aerial Vehicles (UAVs) that can operate at extended distances collect required data.  This clarification is in addition to information provided in the Project Location and Access Sections in the Scope of Work.


2. Are the perimeters of the units in question already designated in a KML file or similar?

ANSWER: The units are identified using burn severity data and imagery in GIS and split into individual units/polygons.

3. Will Contractor have access through gates or areas closed to public for motorized travel? Will State provide lock keys, combos, etc?

ANSWER: Yes, IDL and FS will cooperate with the successful bidder to provide access behind locked gates as determined necessary to complete the work described in the Scope of Work.  Not all areas behind closed gates may be accessible by full size vehicles and some maintenance or clearing of down trees may be required.

4. Does IDL/USFS have a minimum ground truthing expectations or target number of ground plots per unit, per acreage, or per stocking class that the Contractor should assume when proposing a ground truthing methodology?

ANSWER: There is no standard for the number of plots to be ground-truthed. Data collected will be verified early in the project via ground-truthing units or portions of units where data has been collected to verify the accuracy of the data.  Details on the extent of ground-truthing that is appropriate would be discussed and agreed upon at the pre-work meeting after a Contractor is selected.

5. If ground truthing reveals discrepancies between drone-derived data and field data, will the Contractor be expected to revise models and reprocess all affected units?
ANSWER: Yes, if the data being gathered does not meet the requirements of the Scope of Work the Contractor would be expected to revise their methods and processes to collect data that meets the specifications required.

6. For the requirement to break down live trees per acre by species “when possible,” what level of species identification confidence is acceptable, and is genus-level classification acceptable where species-level identification is not feasible from imagery?

ANSWER: Identifying tree species is desirable but not a requirement of the Scope of Work.  The end goal is to determine live trees and regeneration of trees within the specified units.

7. Please clarify how the requirement for seedlings >1 foot tall should be interpreted for drone-based methods. Is indirect estimation acceptable, or is this threshold intended to be verified primarily through ground truthing?

ANSWER: The units being surveyed for regeneration should have been done 7-10 years ago resulting in regenerated vegetation that is taller than what would typically be encountered in a regeneration survey.  The desired end result is to determine live trees and regeneration of trees, estimation would be acceptable.

8. How should “contiguous” be defined for the identification of ≥10-acre understocked areas (e.g., edge-to-edge polygon contact only, corner contact included, raster-based contiguity)?
ANSWER: Areas determined to be ≥10-acre understocked areas would be raster based continuous polygons that can be further differentiated by survey unit.  In other words, a polygon of understocked area that occurs in more than one survey unit would be split by the unit boundaries.  This may result in polygons less than 10 acres, however the total understocked area would still be 10 acres or greater.

9. Will the contractor be provided any more files as in .kml / .kmz / .shp as to have exact boundaries of requested areas.

ANSWER: Yes, the successful bidder will be provided spatial data in the form of GIS shapefiles and/or KMZ/KML data.

10. How should partial areas along unit boundaries be treated when calculating contiguous understocked areas?

ANSWER: Areas along unit boundaries that are less than 10 acres in size would be ignored, unless these areas were a small portion of a ≥10-acre areas in an adjacent unit.  The intent is to identify all areas ≥10-acre total.

11. Are there preferred layout elements, scale ranges, or symbology standards for the georeferenced PDFs?

ANSWER: No, there is no preference for this specified in the Scope of Work or otherwise.

12. Is flying always allowed when plat is occupied by forest users (on or before August 30, 2026)?

ANSWER: UAS operations will be authorized at any time provided the operations are conducted in compliance with FAA guidelines and regulations.  Exclusions would apply if airspace becomes restricted due to wildfire or other activities within the project area.

13. If forest users are present in a unit, is the Contractor expected to delay work until the unit is unoccupied?(possibly beyond the August 30th, 2026 deadline)

ANSWER: No, the successful bidder would not be expected to delay work due to presence of forest users.  It would be preferable to conduct operations in units not occupied by forest users if possible but provided the operations are being conducted in accordance with FAA guidelines and regulations contract work would be allowed to continue.

14. Is there an expected or acceptable accuracy threshold (e.g., RMSE, % error, confidence interval) for drone-derived TPA estimates when compared to ground truthing data and specie classification?
ANSWER: There is no measure of accuracy at this time, this would be discussed and mutually agreed upon by the Contractor, IDL and USFS at the pre-work meeting.

15. Is there flexibility with timeline if undefined factors such as (but not limited to) TFR's, fire, smoke, weather, access, "acts of God" keep Contractor from performing work? Will schedule extensions be granted?

ANSWER: Unexpected delays that are not a fault of the Contractor, USFS or IDL will be taken into consideration and appropriate adjustments made if necessary. UAS operations after August 30 are highly discouraged due to high use by members of public during hunting season.

16. Who will be the FIC/COR and do they have working knowledge of UAS/Drone Operations for this scope of work and defined area?
ANSWER: The USFS and IDL FIC/COR’s will be identified after an award is made.  IDL and USFS will make every effort to provide qualified personnel.

17. Is the Contractor required to submit raw imagery or intermediate processing products, or only final deliverables listed in the Scope of Work?

ANSWER: The Contractor will submit draft results to IDL and USFS for review. IDL and USFS will provide feedback to the Contractor and allow the Contractor time to make any necessary revisions.  If no revisions are necessary, the Contractor will be informed that the delivered product is accepted as-is.

18. From the time of Contractor data delivery, What is IDL’s expected turnaround time for reviewing deliverables and acceptance?

ANSWER: IDL would review the deliverables and provide feedback to the Contractor within 10 business days of receipt.

19. If additional field data collection is requested during review, will this be considered within scope or treated as a contract modification?

ANSWER: Any additional data collection or other work not described in the Scope of Work would require a contract modification and mutual consent between IDL and the contractor to be added to the Contract.

20. What constitutes “satisfactory completion” for payment?
ANSWER: Satisfactory completion means the requested data has been submitted to IDL and USFS by the Contractor, IDL and USFS have reviewed the submitted data and determined it to be acceptable per the terms of the Contract.  

21. Will acceptance be based on automated checks, visual inspection, or third-party validation?

ANSWER: Acceptance will be based on IDL and USFS review and acceptance of submitted deliverables by the Contractor in accordance with all Contract terms and specifications.

22. What is the standard size of each plot required for the ground-truthing areas?

ANSWER: There is no standard for ground-truthing of data collected; in previous similar projects a data validation process was submitted to IDL prior to work beginning, and units or portions of units were ground-truthed early in the project to verify that the data being collected was accurate.  Once it was determined that the data met acceptable standards and was accurate no further ground-truthing was required.

23. How many ground truthing plots are requested for a 10-acre block?

ANSWER: There is no standard for the number of plots to be ground-truthed. Data collected will be verified early in the project via ground-truthing units or portions of units where data has been collected to verify the accuracy of the data.  Details on the extent of ground-truthing that is appropriate would be discussed and agreed upon at the pre-work meeting after a Contractor is selected.

24. What percentage (%) of total drone survey area (8,985 acres) is required to be ground-truthed?

ANSWER: There is no standard for the percentage of the total survey to be ground-truthed. Data collected will be verified early in the project via ground-truthing units or portions of units where data has been collected to verify the accuracy of the data.  Details on the extent of ground-truthing that is appropriate would be discussed and agreed upon at the pre-work meeting after a Contractor is selected.

25. Can boundaries of the Mustang burn areas be shared via kml or kmz format? This will assist in estimating drone flight time for each boundary area that needs surveyed.

ANSWER: Yes, unit boundaries can and will be shared with the successful Contractor after an award is made and prior to data collection starting.


All other terms and conditions remain the same.

These questions and answers extend the remaining Schedule of Events as follows: 
 
· Bid Closing Date - March 9, 2026 @ 3:00 p.m., PT
· Anticipated Intent to Award – March 16, 2026
· Anticipated Award - March 26, 2026


Sherry Leason
Contracts Officer
Idaho Department of Lands
3284 W Industrial Loop
Coeur d'Alene, ID 83815
59sleason@idl.idaho.gov 
208.769.1525 ext 8659 Main Line
208.666.8619 Direct 
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